#### The Regents of the University of California

#### **GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE**

January 23, 2020

The Governance Committee met on the above date at the UCSF–Mission Bay Conference Center, San Francisco.

Members present: Regents Anguiano, Elliott, Lansing, Makarechian, Napolitano, Pérez, and

Sherman

In attendance: Regents Butler, Cohen, Guber, Simmons, and Weddle, Regent-designate

Muwwakkil, Faculty Representative Bhavnani, Secretary and Chief of Staff Shaw, General Counsel Robinson, Provost Brown, Executive Vice President Byington, Interim Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Jenny, Acting Vice President Lloyd, Chancellors Christ, Gillman,

Larive, May, Wilcox, and Yang, and Recording Secretary Johns

The meeting convened at 10:15 a.m. with Committee Chair Pérez presiding. He explained that notice had been given in compliance with the Bylaws and Standing Orders for a special meeting of the Governance Committee.

#### 1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the minutes of the meeting of November 13, 2019 were approved.

## 2. APPROVAL OF MARKET-BASED SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR CATHERINE KOSHLAND AS VICE CHANCELLOR – UNDERGRADUATE EDUCATION, BERKELEY CAMPUS AS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The Committee recommended approval of the following items in connection with the market-based salary adjustment for Catherine Koshland as Vice Chancellor – Undergraduate Education, Berkeley campus:

- A. Per policy, a market-based salary adjustment of 11.7 percent, increasing Catherine Koshland's annual base salary from \$295,368 to \$330,000, as Vice Chancellor Undergraduate Education, Berkeley campus, at 100 percent time.
- B. Continuation of standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits, including continuation of eligibility for senior management life insurance and executive salary continuation for disability (eligible and vested as a result of five or more consecutive years of Senior Management Group service).

- C. Continued eligibility to participate in the UC Employee Housing Assistance Program, subject to all applicable program requirements.
- D. Continued eligibility to accrue sabbatical credits as a member of the tenured faculty, consistent with academic personnel policy.
- E. Ms. Koshland will continue to comply with the applicable Outside Professional Activities (OPA) policy and reporting requirements.
- F. This action will be effective January 1, 2020.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents, the President, or the Chancellor, as applicable under Regents policy, and shall supersede all previous oral and written commitments. Compensation recommendations and final actions will be released to the public as required in accordance with the standard procedures of the Board of Regents.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and a copy is on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Committee Chair Pérez briefly introduced the item.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

# 3. APPROVAL OF MARKET-BASED SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR VIRGINIA STEEL AS UNIVERSITY LIBRARIAN, LOS ANGELES CAMPUS AS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The Committee recommended approval of the following items in connection with the market-based salary adjustment for Virginia Steel, University Librarian, Los Angeles campus:

- A. Per policy, a market-based salary adjustment of six percent, increasing Virginia Steel's base salary from \$292,065 to \$309,589, as University Librarian, Los Angeles campus, at 100 percent time. This will be funded partially or fully by State funds.
- B. Per policy, continuation of standard pension and health and welfare benefits and standard senior management benefits, including continuation of eligibility for senior management life insurance and executive salary continuation for disability (eligible and vested as a result of five or more consecutive years of Senior Management Group service).
- C. Per policy, continuation of a monthly contribution to the Senior Management Supplemental Benefit Program.

- D. Per policy, continued eligibility to participate in the UC Employee Housing Assistance Program, subject to all program requirements.
- E. Ms. Steel will continue to comply with the applicable Outside Professional Activities (OPA) policy and reporting requirements.
- F. This action will be effective January 1, 2020.

The compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment until modified by the Regents, the President, or the Chancellor, as applicable under Regents policy, and shall supersede all previous oral and written commitments. Compensation recommendations and final actions will be released to the public as required in accordance with the standard procedures of the Board of Regents.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and a copy is on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Committee Chair Pérez briefly introduced the item.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

4. APPROVAL OF RETROACTIVE APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF TEMPORARY HOUSING COSTS FOR DREW CALANDRELLA, FORMER INTERIM VICE CHANCELLOR – STUDENT AFFAIRS, SAN DIEGO CAMPUS AS DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION

The Committee recommended retroactive approval for the payment of temporary housing costs of \$17,414.53 for Drew Calandrella, former Interim Vice Chancellor – Student Affairs, San Diego campus, as an exception to policy.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and a copy is on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Committee Chair Pérez briefly introduced the item.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

5. CONSENT AGENDA: CORRECTION TO APPROVAL OF INCENTIVE COMPENSATION USING NON-STATE FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19 FOR JAGDEEP SINGH BACHHER AS CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER AND VICE PRESIDENT – INVESTMENTS, OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT

The President of the University recommended approval of a correction of an administrative error in the Recommendation Section of the approved September 2019 action, *Incentive* 

Compensation Using Non-State Funds for Fiscal Year 2018-19 for Jagdeep Singh Bachher as Chief Investment Officer and Vice President – Investments, Office of the President, as follows:

#### Additions shown by underscoring; deletions shown by strikethrough

#### **Recommended Compensation**

Effective Date: upon Regents' approval

Base Salary at the end of the 2018-19 Plan Year: \$672,036

AIP Award: \$1,037,933 (154.446 percent of base salary at the end of the 2018-19 Plan

Year)

Base Salary at the end of the 2018-19 Plan Year Plus Recommended AIP Award:

<del>\$672,036</del> \$1,709,969

Funding: non-State-funded

#### Prior Year Data (2017-18 Plan Year)

Effective Date: upon Regents' approval (January 17, 2019)

Base Salary at the end of the 2017-18 Plan Year: \$652,454

AIP Award: \$480,985 (75.252 percent of base salary at the end of the 2017-18 Plan Year) Base Salary at the end of the 2017-18 Plan Year Plus Recommended AIP Award:

\$1,143,439

Funding: non-State-funded

The incentive compensation described above shall constitute the University's total commitment regarding incentive compensation until modified by the Regents or the President, as applicable under Regents policy, and shall supersede all previous oral and written commitments. Compensation recommendations and final actions will be released to the public as required in accordance with the standard procedures of the Board of Regents.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and a copy is on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Committee Chair Pérez briefly introduced the item.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

### 6. AMENDMENT OF REGENTS POLICY 5402 – POLICY GENERALLY PROHIBITING CONTRACTING FOR SERVICES

The President of the University recommended that the Regents amend Regents Policy 5402 – Policy Generally Prohibiting Contracting for Services, as shown in Attachment 1.

[Background material was provided to Regents in advance of the meeting, and a copy is on file in the Office of the Secretary and Chief of Staff.]

Committee Chair Pérez briefly introduced the item, explaining that the proposed amendment would bring Regents Policy 5402 in alignment with provisions in a tentative agreement reached with the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees Local 3299 unit.

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the Committee approved the President's recommendation and voted to present it to the Board.

The meeting adjourned at 10:20 a.m.

Attest:

Secretary and Chief of Staff

#### Additions shown by underscoring; deletions shown by strikethrough

### Proposed Amendments to Regents Policy 5402: Policy Generally Prohibiting Contracting for Services

Approved November 14, 2019

#### POLICY SUMMARY/GUIDING VALUES AND PRINCIPLES

There shall be a general prohibition on contracting out for services and functions that can be performed by University staff. Under exigent and limited circumstances when an outside contract is a solution of last resort, the following shall apply:

- UC MUST VALUE AND PROTECT ITS EMPLOYEES The University shall prioritize the use of its employees to perform functions and services whenever possible and the use of outside contractors will not cause or facilitate the displacement of university employees.
- EQUAL PAY FOR EQUAL WORK The labor conditions of contract workers shall be protected by
  ensuring they receive wages and benefits equivalent to what the University provides to its
  employees, and providing those who have performed services to the University on a long-term and
  continuous basis the opportunity to become University employees.
- UC MUST BE A MODEL EMPLOYER Requirements governing state agencies and departments under California Government Code Section 19130 shall serve as minimum standards and, whenever reasonable, shall be exceeded.

Since its founding, the University's public mission has always been to unlock the doors of economic opportunity, uplift the human condition, and serve as an antidote to poverty. This begins from within.

UC's employment and contracting practices for all individuals working on its campuses, medical centers, and laboratories must model what it demands of other employers. In particular, this means the University must remain vigilant in ensuring its use of contract workers does not contribute to the rise of poverty-level jobs, thereby exacerbating growing economic inequality and reliance on taxpayer-funded "safety-net" services. Contracting out should be used sparingly and treated as an option of last resort to address temporary needs, not as a means to replace employees with lower-wage contractors.

As a public trust and one of the largest employers in California, the University is committed to protecting and valuing the lives of those it serves, educates, and employs.

#### POLICY TEXT

Consistent with the values and principles outlined above, this policy establishes standards for contracts for services for cleaning, custodial, janitorial or housekeeping services; food services; laundry services; groundskeeping; building maintenance; transportation and parking services; security services; billing and coding services; sterile processing; hospital or nursing assistant services; and medical imaging or other medical technician services. These shall be referred to as "covered services" for purposes of this policy.

The University will utilize its employees to perform covered services that have been customarily performed by University employees to the greatest extent possible before resorting to the use of private contractors to provide such services. Contracting for covered services only is permissible under the limited circumstances described in this policy or under other circumstances where contracting out is required by law, Federal requirement, contract or grant requirement, or court decision or orders.

- A.In-sourcing Contracted Workers: The University is committed to using University employees to perform covered services, and to providing employment opportunities to workers who have been providing covered services to the University. No later than February 15, 2020, the University shall identify covered services that have been provided on a continuous basis for 12 months or more through service contracts and shall, to the fullest extent possible, in-source that work to be provided by University employees. Individuals employed by service contractors who have provided those services to the University on a continuous basis for 12 months or more may request to be converted to University employment. Requests should be submitted to the location's Employee/Labor Relations Manager. The University shall establish implementation guidelines by no later than January 31 February 15, 2020.
- B.General Prohibition on Contracting Out: Under this policy, contracting for covered services only is permitted where contracting out is required by law, Federal requirement, contract or grant requirement, or court decisions or orders, or under the following limited, exigent circumstances that comply with the State's requirements in Government Code section 19130:
  - 1. The services are needed to address an emergency. An emergency may include, but is not limited to, the need to prevent the stoppage of University operations or to ensure the continuous operations of University medical centers.
  - 2. The employees capable of providing the required services are not available at the University location in sufficient quantity or do not possess the necessary level of expertise, or the services cannot be performed satisfactorily by University employees, or the services are of a specialized or technical nature and the expertise, knowledge, ability and/or equipment required is not available internally.
  - 3. The services are incidental to a contract for the purchase or lease of real or personal property. This includes services that are to be provided on property that the University has leased to or from a third party or through public private partnerships.
  - 4. The services are of such an urgent, temporary, or occasional nature that the delay resulting from their performance by University employees hired under the University's regular or ordinary hiring process, or the inefficiencies or difficulties in utilizing University employees, would frustrate the University's goals giving rise to the need for the services.
  - 5. The contractor will provide equipment, materials, facilities, or support services that could not be provided feasibly in the location where the services are to be performed. All services at remote facilities, which are those not within a 10-mile radius of a University campus, medical center, or Laboratory, fall within this exception.
  - 6. The services are performed by registry personnel in clinical operations to address short-term staffing needs, including circumstances where the University's reasonable recruitment efforts to hire employees are unable to satisfy ongoing staffing needs.

- 1. Wage and Benefits Parity: Contracts for covered services exceeding \$100,000 and 90 days' duration shall include provisions requiring the contractor to provide its employees working at University locations wages and benefits that are equivalent to the University wages and benefits provided to University employees performing the same work. "Benefits" includes health, dental, vision, and retirement as well as vacation, sick leave, and holiday pay. The Office of the President shall establish annually the wage and benefit costs for these workers and contractors. The University may, in its sole discretion, terminate its agreement with a contractor that fails to comply with these provisions or provide the contractor with an opportunity to remedy its noncompliance.
- 2. No Displacement of University Employees: Contracts for covered services shall not displace University employees. Where displacement is unavoidable, the University shall make available another position for which the employee is qualified. The position will be in the same bargaining unit and at the same campus, medical center, or Laboratory from which the employee was displaced and shall not result in either a reduction in pay and benefits or a change of work location that is greater than ten (10) miles. "Displacement" means demotion, layoff or involuntary reduction in time due to entering into a contract for services.
- 3. Equal Employment Opportunity: Contracts for covered services shall not adversely affect the University's equal employment opportunity efforts.
- D.Notice to Employee Organization: The University will provide advance notice to affected employee organizations prior to entering into, extending, or renewing a contract for covered services over \$100,000.
  - Where a Request for Proposal will be issued, the University will provide a copy of the RFP at the time of issuance.
  - Where no RFP will be issued, the University will provide notice of at least 30 calendar days
    prior to entering into, extending or renewing the contract.
  - The notice also shall provide information about the provisions of this policy that justify the contract.
  - During the notice period, upon the employee organization's request, the University will
    provide relevant non-privileged information that is reasonably available pertaining to the
    contract and the employee organization may present alternatives to mitigate or avoid the
    need for the contract while still satisfying the University's needs to provide services. The
    University must consider those alternatives and adopt them when feasible provided that the
    employee organization provides those alternatives within 14 days of the notice.
  - The University shall produce an annual report of all contracts for covered services, regardless
    of amount or duration, and shall provide the report to affected employee organizations and
    the Regents.
- E. Enforcement: Upon receiving the notice described in section D. above, an employee organization may request review of a proposed contract for covered services within ten (10) days of the notice to determine whether the contract complies with the provisions of section B. of this policy. The University shall appoint a neutral hearing officer to conduct the review from a panel mutually agreed upon by the University and the employee organization.

The hearing officer shall review the matter and determine whether there is good cause for a hearing. If so, the hearing officer shall schedule the disputed contract for a hearing for the purpose of receiving evidence and hearing arguments concerning the propriety of the disputed contract under the provisions of section B., above. The reasons for the hearing officer's decision regarding whether the contract complies with the provisions of section B., above, shall be in writing and shared with the parties. The hearing should be completed and the decision issued within sixty (60) days of the employee organization's request for review, or as soon as is practicable, whichever occurs first. The hearing officer's decision shall be final.

If an employee organization's collective bargaining agreement prescribes a different enforcement mechanism for disputes over contracts for services, then that procedure will take precedence.

#### COMPLIANCE/DELEGATION

The University shall implement the requirements of this policy by adopting guidelines, administrative policies, and procedures.

The President, in concurrence with the Board Chair, must approve any exceptions to this policy. The President shall report any approved exceptions to the Governance Committee within ten (10) business days of granting the exception. The full Board shall retain the authority to amend or reject any exceptions granted within sixty (60) days of receiving a report of exceptions approved by the President.